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The Venetian fortress “Rocca a Mare”,
“Castello a Mare”, “Castello”, “Su Kulesi”
or “Koules” is situated at the entrance INFORMATION
to the Venetian harbor of Heraklion.

It is one of the so-called marine fortresses
which functioned as forward bastions
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EAAHNIKA

20pQWVa pE TIG ICTOPIKEG HAPTUPIES,

otnyv idia B€on eival moAU mBavdv va umripxe Mipyog
and tn B Bulavuivri mepiodo rj kar tv apafokpatia.
Aegv yvwpifoupe Tn pop@r} Tou @poupiou katd v
TpWTn mepiodo g evetokpatiag. Ta Pevetika
€yypaga Twv apxwv tou |6ou aiwva avagpépouv

éu o mipyog eixe unootei {nuI€G Kal fTav

oxebov etoipdpporog. Me v emkpdtnon Tou
TIPOHaxwvikol cuotrjpatog oxUpwong (fronte
bastionato) kai tn pi1gikr} aAayr TG popPPrG TwV
OXUPWOEWY, TO TTAAIS @pouplo Sev pmopoulae va
avtamokpIBei oTIG VEEG APUVTIKEG aVAYKES TWV
moAUBSAwyY SmAwy, yI’ autd to 1523 anogaacidetar n
kateddegion Kai n ek véou 8éunorj tou, cUPPwva pe
TO MPOPAXWVIKG olvotnua. H kataokeur] Tou véou
¢ppoupiou odokAnpwbnke yupw oto 1540. Ammotelei
avandoTmacto TPHPA TWV VEWY EVETIKWY OXUPWOEWY
™G mMOANG. O Kkevrpikdg aovag tou @poupiou
OTPEPETal IPOG TNV avatolr yia va mpootateUel 1o
ANipéva Kkail tnv avatoAikr aktr, eve n B.-BA. mieupd
Aeyxe tov kdATo tou HpakAeiou, To mapdktio
teixog kai to Kpntiké mélayog.

To ppouplo gival XTIoPEVO TMAVw GE PUOIKS
Bpaxwdeg £Eappa, To omoio ol Bevetoi
avaykdotnkav va cupminpwoouv BuBifovtag
mahi€g yahépeg yepdteg pe Bpdxia, xalikia kai
oykoMBoug, mou petagépBnkav and ta Ppackid
kar v Ntia. To @poupio gival Siwpogo kai

otV TeNIKI] Tou pop@r| KAAUTTTE em@dveia

niepimou 3.600 T.p. Xto 16dyelo, To omoio &ival
Bolookenég, pe onég e§agpiopol Kal wTICHOU
mou amoArjyouv oto Swpa, Siapopewvovtail 26
EMPEPOUG XWPOI TTOU XPNOiJeuav wg amobrikeg
TpoYijwv-moepogodiwy, aiBouca ouykévtpwong
Kkai guAakr. Emiong oto 1o6yeio Bpiokdtav n
Se&apevry vepou. H mpdoPacn oto Swpa yivetal
péow KApakootaciou Kal kekAipévou emméSou yia
™ peta@opd Twv MoAUBSAwv SMAwY. ZTOUG ToiXoug
undpxouv mpdBolol, mou mbavétata otipilav
EUAIVO pECOTIATWHA YIa TOUG XWPOUG OTPATWVICHOU.
To dwpa eival Siapoppwpévo oe duo emimeda. Exei
UTTPXav KataAUPata yia Tov KaoTteAAGVo Kal Toug
a§lwpatikoug G @poupds, Evag goupvog, Evag
MUAOG, pia pIkpr ekkAnoia kal o dpog.

21g oYeig tou KoUle gival evioIXIOPEVEG TPEIG
pappdpiveg ouvBéoelg pe to Ptepwtd Aéova,
ouppolo tou guayyehiotri Mdpkou, mpootdtn g
Bevetiag. H mpdytn Bpioketal mavw and tnv kdpia
TUAN, otn Sutikr] MAeupd tou ppoupiou. Xt Bdon g
unidpxel emypagr] ue To évopa tou 86yn Andrea Gritti
(1533-1534). H 8eutepn ouvbeon eival tomobetnuévn
mavw and tn Bépeia mUAn. Xtn Bdon tng undpxel
emypaen pe ta ovépata tou 86yn Andrea Gritti,

tou Souka tng Kprjtng Domenico Capello, tou
capitano generale Gerolamo Zane kal Twv cupBouiwv
Marcantonio Diedo kai Nicolo Marcello (1533).

H tpitn oluvOeon, ot véua dyn tou ppoupiou

TPOG Tov evetikd Aigéva, gival Aitdtepn.

Katd v oBwpavikr mepiodo to @poupio déxtnke
€MOKEVEG Kal emMepPdoeig, Kuping oto dwpa, drmou
mpootiBevtal endA&eig, kavovioBupideg kar éva pikpd
TEPEVOG. XTa KENIA TOU (ppoupiou puAakicTnkav
moAloi Kpriteg emavaotdteg, avdpeca otoug

omoioug o AaokaAoyidvvng.

To ppoupio S€XTNKE EMAVEIANUPEVEG EMIOKEUEG
e&artiag g oppntikrig SUvapng g 6dAacoag mou
mpo&evei akopn kai orjpepa eOopEG oty Toixorolia
kai ot Bepedinor tou.

According to historical testimony, there was probably
a tower at the same site during the second Byzantine
or even the Arab period. We do not know what form
the fortress had during the first period of the Venetian
rule. Early 16th c. Venetian documents mention that
the tower had suffered damages and was practically

in ruins. With the prevalence of the bastion system
(fronte bastionato) and radical changes in the form of
fortifications, the old fortress could not meet the new
defensive needs created by the use of cannons, and so
in 1523 it was decided to demolish it and build it over
in accordance with the bastion system. Construction
of the new fortress was completed around 1540.

It formed an inseparable part of the new Venetian
fortifications of the city. The fortress’s main axis was
oriented towards the East to protect the harbor and
the east coast, while its north-northwestern side
controlled the Bay of Candia, the coastal wall, and the
Cretan sea.

The fortress is built atop a natural rocky outcrop,
which the Venetians were compelled to supplement
by sinking old galleons filled with rocks, gravel and
boulders transported from Fraskia and Dia.

The fortress has two storeys, and in its final form
covered a total area of around 3,600 square meters.
On the ground floor, which was vaulted with openings
for ventilation and lighting ending at the dome, there
were 26 separate rooms used as storerooms for food
and munitions, a meeting hall, and a prison. The water
reservoir was also on the ground floor. Access to the
upper storey was achieved by a staircase and a ramp
used for moving firearms.

There are projections on the walls that probably
supported a wooden mezzanine floor to provide
troop quarters. The upper floor is configured in two
levels; it provided accommodations for the governor
(castellano) and officers of the garrison, a bakery,

a mill, a small church and a lighthouse.

Three marble compositions with the Winged Lion,
the symbol of Saint Mark (Venice’s patron saint)
were built into the facades of Koules. The first is
set above the main gate on the western side of

the fortress. At its base is an inscription with the
name of the Doge Andrea Gritti (1533-1534). The
second is above the northern gate; at its base is an
inscription bearing the names of the Doge Andrea
Gritti, the Duke of Crete Domenico Capello, the
capitano generale Gerolamo Zane, and the councillors
(consiglieri) Marcantonio Diedo and Nicolo Marcello
(1533). The third composition on the fortress’s
southern facade is simpler.

During the Ottoman period the fortress underwent
repairs and interventions, chiefly to its upper storey,
where battlements, gun ports, and a small mosque
were added. Many Cretan revolutionaries were
imprisoned in the fortress’s cells, Daskalogiannis
among them.

The fortress has been repeatedly repaired due to

the great force of the sea, which continues today to
cause damage to its masonry and foundations.
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